City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SPU-164
Addendum
Updated 9/02/10

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #SPU-164, titled “Workforce Management & Media Blending Software System for SPU Contact Center” released on 8/10/10.  The due date and time for proposals remains as 9/10/10 4:00PM (Pacific).  This Addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and any revisions to the RFP.  This Addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.

	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	8/10/10
	8/23/10
	Is the RFP for WFM and ACD/Switch or just has to be compatible with Nortel/Avaya roadmap? 


	The RFP is for a WFM product that is compatible with our current phone equipment/software, which is identified in the RFP.

	

	2
	8/19/10
	8/24/10
	How are remote (work at home) agents connected into the existing contact center?


	A Full T-1

	

	3
	8/19/10
	8/24/10
	What is the minimum bandwidth that the remote agents have at their location? DSL? Dial Up? Cable Modem?


	A Full T-1 ,1.5 MB 


	

	4
	8/19/10
	8/24/10
	Do agents need to be able to work on multiple contacts at the same time (2.19) or Multiplicity?
	Agents are only working with one contact at a time in the current environment.  In the future agents will need to be blended across calls, emails, offline, faxes, etc, especially if they are idle on the phone for  a period of time.   Possible media ratios for the future might be one (1) call at a time, three (3) emails at a time, three (3) offline white-mail pieces at a time, three (3) faxes at a time, or four (4) chats at a time.


	

	5
	8/19/10
	8/24/10
	If so how many contacts per agent?


	Agents currently receive one contact at a time and the contact center averages between 2500 and 3000 phone calls per day. It is difficult right now to determine how many other mixed media contacts we have per day- It usually runs between 1200 and 2000 other types of contacts. Often time only one group of agents processes non-phone contacts, however this business process will likely change when the media blending software is implemented. 


	

	6
	8/19/10
	8/24/10
	What is the current version of VMware that the City has deployed? (3.1)


	VMware Vsphere 4.1 is used 


	

	7
	8/19/10
	8/24/10
	What is the Number of agents that will be assign to each Skillset (Email, Web Chat, Fax,) or should we assume it is 120 agents? (4.1) normally you will have agents that are trained for each skill type?


	The 120 agents are logged in to all skill sets and the calls they receive are set by priority in Symposium.


	

	8
	8/19/10
	8/24/10
	Please provide serial numbers and bayface layout for the SPU and JC CS1000M switches for upgrade can be configured.


	The SPU CS1K is actually labeled SMT (Seattle Municipal Tower) it’s serial # is 92021 the JC CS1K has serial #92020.  Regarding the bay face layouts, what in the pbx is being considered for upgrade to implement this product? 


	

	9
	8/19/10
	8/24/10
	Will there be an equipment room walk through scheduled in conjunction with the bidder’s conference?


	No. If an equipment room walk through is required – it can be arranged with a DoIT person in attendance.


	

	10
	8/25/10
	8/26/10
	Below are my 3 questions. They refer to the Workforce Management tab in the Technical and Functional Response spreadsheet.
1.4   What is TSF?
	The telephone service factor, or “TSF”, measures how many calls are answered during a given amount of time in seconds. This number can be used to determine goals if compared to the service level a company desires.

	

	11
	8/25/10
	8/26/10
	1.23   What do they mean by "defining different FTEs by workgroup”? 

	Defining FTEs by Workgroup relates to the fact that different contact centers (or Work Groups) throughout the city will likely be using the same WFM system for Forecasting, Scheduling, and Staffing (“FS&S”) purposes.  We want the ability for each center to define an FTE, in other words an FTE might be a 5/40 (5 days for 8 hours each day), 4/10 (4 days for 10 hours each day), 9/80, etc...  Each center may use a variety of FTE definitions; the primary requirement is that it can be defined at the Work Group level.
	

	12
	8/25/10
	8/26/10
	1.45   What are the Resources they are referring to?


	Resources would be those who are being forecasted and scheduled by the system. More often than not it would refer to an agent.

	

	13
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	The following 17 questions were raised at the Pre-Proposal Conference and the City’s official response.
Other municipalities are beginning to use social media (Twitter, Facebook) to deliver services.  How does this fit in to SPU plans?  Is social media included in “media blending”?  


	SPU does not want to exclude any media types for integration, including social media.


	

	14
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	Are we using email and chat now? 


	Email is processed on the Utility Webpage.  We do not handle live chat.  SPU wants to view other media as just additional generic objects, just another type of communication to route to an agent’s queue.  This is a future state requirement, we don’t want to foreclose future possibilities.  We want the workforce application to be able to plan and staff around all media types.


	

	15
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	Are you looking for just a WFM solution not the actual media blending solution?
	If an RFP response addresses only one of the two desired functions (Workforce Management or Media Blending) but not both, please include a cost and schedule proposal to integrate the proposed product.


	

	16
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	How do you define “white mail”? 


	White mail refers to customer correspondence; other contact center-related letters, bills, printed materials, which would be scanned to make it available to an agent.


	

	17
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	On page #6, the idea to alternately propose a vendor-hosted solution first appears.  Can you elaborate on what you mean by vendor-hosted?  Are you looking for SaaS or looking for the entire WFM process itself to be hosted? 


	SPU is looking for a technology solution to support the entire WFM business process.  Vendor hosted does NOT mean we are interested in outsourcing our business process.  The workforce management team will remain in the SPU organization and conduct their work as part of the contact center staff.  It is envisioned that the WFM application itself and associated hardware would be located off-site, in a normal SaaS arrangement.


	

	18
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	Do you currently have vendor hosted applications running at the City?


	Yes we do.  The Contact Center electronic bill pay application is an example of one of our vendor-hosted (SaaS) applications.


	

	19
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	Regarding the test environment.  Do you have an isolated test environment?  Or is it a sub-set of what’s installed and you are going to partition off a piece of the WFM and the system itself for a test environment? 


	SPU would prefer to have a separate test environment, to the extent that that’s possible.


	

	20
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	Does that include a PBX switching fabric?


	We do not have test PBXs, so the answer to that is no.


	

	21
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	If we were to put in an addition to your existing contact center environment for the multi-media that would require a stand-alone test environment, would the City provide extra telephone sets for that test environment? 


	Yes, the City would provide them.  And we actually do have environments with test and virtual already, but not separate Contact Center Manager instances (CCMs) or separate servers for Workforce Management. 


	

	22
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	In Section 7 under User Acceptance Testing, is there a general guideline that the City has used in the past relevant to the extensiveness of UAT?  How big is that “breadbox” in that it requests that we obviously assist and be there to support those teams, but we don’t know if that’s a team of 10 people testing for three months, or a few weeks?  How can they know the magnitude of this work, such as the size of the team and length of the test?  


	There is no overall standard, and the effort devoted to UAT is decided on a case by case basis.  We would use 3 to 6 people from the project team for testing, as well as professional testers.  A test script based on the Technical and Functional requirements would be used to conduct the test.   320 SPU labor hours and 20 working days have been budgeted for UAT.Contract negotiations and the Scope of Work may be used to define the UAT task as necessary.  


	

	23
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	I am assuming that you would want a test script for each different media type that you’re going to bring into your media blending?


	Yes, we would develop a script for each different media type. 


	

	24
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	If additional space is needed for a response, can we refer to and provide it on an addendum? 


	Put your entire response on the appropriate questionnaire sheet so that the evaluation team can find it easily in one place, and does not need to hunt and search.  It is in the responder’s best interest to put the response on the appropriate sheet so that it can be easily reviewed and credit can be given.


	

	25
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	Can SPU provide the titles of the people who will be on the evaluation team?  Will there be IT and end users?  Titles are very helpful so we can answer at the appropriate level. 


	The current make-up of the evaluation team is as follows:
2 – SPU Customer Service

1 - SPU Technology Program Office

1 – SPU Project Management

1 – SPU IT Operations

1 – DoIT Communication Technology
	

	26
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	Will the demonstrations be held on-site or off-site?  


	On site.  We have allowed enough time for this, and will send the vendors a script telling them what should be shown in the demo. 


	

	27
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	For the demo, we will have access to the internet back to our facility?  Or would they need to have equipment on-site? 


	The demonstration would be acceptable either way, but it would probably be easier for the vendor to use a remote site across the internet.  The remote site must be a fully functional live system, of course, not just a server somewhere serving up screen shots of what the solution would look like if actually configured.  We would want to see agent and WF analyst views, and how the various media are presented to the agent’s desktop.

	

	28
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	On the pricing proposal document, bullet #2 under “Assumptions” reads:  “Testing - minimum of two preproduction environments for unit testing, system testing and user acceptance testing.”  Please explain. 


	The SPU standard is to provide different instances for unit and system testing and for User Acceptance Testing.  After the UAT has been accepted, the application code is copied in its entirety from the UAT instance into production.  If no production instance exists, then the UAT instance could become the “live” or production environment.


	

	29
	8/24/10
	8/26/10
	Are you aware that if you are going to do multi-media on your current switching fabric, there is a maximum number of instances of Contact Center Manager that can be run on your switch at any given time?  And if you are looking for two test environments and a production environment as well as your existing environment, you’ve exceeded that threshold.  You are allowed to have three instances of Contact Center on your switch, at least for the multi-media part, and this is a limitation that you need to be aware of.  WFM is different. 


	If only one test environment can be accommodated, SPU will have to adapt to that constraint.


	

	30
	8/26/10
	9/01/10
	What is the existing call recording platform?
	Co-Nexus CXM call recording and quality monitoring system.
	

	31
	8/30/10
	9/01/10
	Can you please provide details on how SPU expects US mail to be integrated with agents desktops?   Question states: "2.1 The system must integrate all work queues to agent’s desktop:  voice, fax, US mail, e-mail, live chat, and the  City's IVR voice files." 


	We anticipate that mail will be scanned and delivered to the agents


	

	32
	8/30/10
	9/01/10
	Can you please explain what is meant by "City's IVR voice files"?  Question states: "2.1  The system must integrate all work queues to agent’s desktop:  voice, fax, US mail, e-mail, live chat, and the City's IVR voice files."


	We have self service applications in the IVR that contain voice files, and we use call pilot for recording customers who report (for example) illegal dumping, or other “voice files” that should be integrated with  the body of media blended work


	

	33
	8/30/10
	9/01/10
	Does SPU require emails and live chats to be recorded for future review?


	We will not “record” (e.g. text to voice) emails or chats, but we currently receive emails and plan to move toward live chat in the future. Our quality management system should be able capture the screen video if agents who are completing this work.
Regarding this and the previous two questions above, the media blending system should track received date, completed date, completed by for all the above.

	

	34
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	How do you hope to improve your current workforce management processes e.g. Challenges you wish to overcome? 

	Core objectives of the Workforce Management system are:
i. Move from a manually intensive environment to an automated environment with core WFM processes automated to increase frequency and accuracy of processes.

ii. Create accurate Demand Requirements for all media types handled by the SPU contact center

iii. Provide a tool that can be used to perform Long Range, Mid-Range, and Short Range Forecasting for the contact center

iv. Provide a tool to facilitate creation of highly efficient agent schedules based upon Demand Requirements and Mid and Short-Range Forecasts

v. Enable a tool that will significantly streamline and will improve the contact center’s ability to perform Real-Time Management 


	

	35
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	How do you forecast staffing levels? 


	Manually using Excel spreadsheets and previously created forecasting models.  Models are accurate and effective; however, manual nature of the process is very time intensive.

	

	36
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	What specific rules do you use to assign shifts to employees, including shift preferences?
	Employee shifts are currently based loosely upon demand (volume), Average Handle Time (“AHT”), and Shrinkage.  Primary business rule used when assigning agents to schedules is tenure within the contact center and Part-Time / Full-Time schedules.  Many other “preferences” are desired in future, more automated scheduling efforts.

	

	37
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	How are last minute schedule changes handled currently? 

	Manual business process conducted by the front-line leadership team.

	

	38
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	How do you forecast, assign and control overtime? 

	Overtime is dependent upon a variety of rules that are negotiated with Union based upon the situation requiring overtime to be offered.   

	

	39
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	RFP requirements call for media blending software and Work Force Management Scheduling. These are two distinct solutions. In reviewing section 6.2.1, it is unclear what is required by the vendor with regard to media blending. Will the vendor be required to install the media blending licenses and provided services for development of media blending applications within the City’s current contact center solution? Or, will the City of Seattle DOIT staff perform this work?


	The solution proposed for SPU can be two (2) distinct solutions integrated together or a single software based solution that offers both capabilities in a blended environment.  Specifically for Media Blending, SPU requires the vendor to provide the licenses and processes for our environment that will be responsible for providing the “media blending” capabilities for the contact center.  Integration with the WFM system, if not already a part of Media Blending solution, will be necessary for providing the complete solution The City of Seattle DoIT staff would perform the development and programming if our current contact center solution is used. The vendor will need to provide the licenses; DoIT’s technical staff would also add the licensing to the current contact center solution servers. 


	

	40
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	It is our understanding that the current scripting within the City of Seattle Contact Center is performed by the “Do It” staff. Can you confirm this is correct and can we make the assumption that this would continue and would not be a requirement of the vendor?


	Scripting development and modification within the Nortel CCM application is currently and will continue to be performed by the city’s Department of Information Technologies (“DoIT”) staff.  This is correct – DoIT staff will continue to develop, program and maintain the current contact center solution.

However, any work to set-up either the WFM or Media Blending application, to include integration with the existing Nortel telephony system, may require professional services assistance from the selected vendor.

	

	41
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	Technical and Functional Response document - media blending tab - Section 2.4 - Please describe all work queues to agent desk top. Specifically, IVR voice files 


	voice = inbound and outbound phone calls
fax = self explanatory
US mail = white mail scanned and indexed in order to be routed to an agent via the media blending application
e-mail = self explanatory
live chat = self explanatory
City's IVR voice files = self-service voice application (a.k.a. a voicemail / call pilot file)

(If desktop messaging is used, and the voice files are stored in the Call Pilot application – then these would become a part of the email grouping.)

	

	42
	8/31/10
	9/02/10
	Technical and Functional Response document - media blending tab - Section 4.1 and 4.3 state different quantities. Can you please restate the requirements for the project?


	4.1 states “The system must support up to 120 agents and 10 supervisors, without slowing system response time” - this is the current contact center population while 4.3 states “The system must accommodate 100 concurrent users without slowing system response time.  Vendor must provide a performance matrix showing response time and how it scales as more agents logon concurrently to the system” pertains to concurrent, meaning “using the system at the same time”. In other words, If all agents tried to schedule vacation at the same time- what would be the impact on system speed?
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